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Knox Candid Moments
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Knox Candid Moments
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Knox Families 2001
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Knox Families 2001
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Knox Families 2001

Sunday School with Wendy Parry and Don Manary
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In The News
There is treasure in the following pages!  These pages contain a wealth of 

newspaper and other clippings that show the congregation in action over the years.  
Some may need a magnifying glass to fully appreciate what is there, but there are many 
gems of delight to be mined here!  Enjoy!
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In The News
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In The News 1940’s

Man confessing to a women friend:

“I wasn’t always as religious as I am now.  For years I thought the Ten Commandments 
were a doo-wop group from the 1950’s!”

Faith & Friends
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In The News 1950’s
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In The News 1950’s
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In The News 1950’s
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In The News 1960’s
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In The News 1960’s
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In The News 1970’s
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In The News 1970’s
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In The News 1980’s
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In The News 1980’s
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In The News 1990’s
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In The News 1990’s
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In The News 1990’s
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In The News 2000’s
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In The News 2000’s
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In The News 2000’s

Daddy, my hugger is empty!
The Family Circus
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The Kirk Session
The Session consists of the minister and ruling elders.  The elders are elected by 

the congregation and ordained.  It is the duty of the Session to be responsible for the
spiritual welfare of the congregation.  All the members of the congregation are subject to 
the authority and discipline of the Session.  The Session must exercise a certain amount 
of supremacy.  Called by God, they are to use the gifts of God to lead and serve the 
people of God ‘for the good of the church and never for self-serving purposes’.  
Decisions on behalf of the congregation are to be made in faithful obedience to the 
scriptures and leading of the Holy Spirit.

The eldership of Knox Church has been composed of faithful men and women, 
who were diligent concerning the work of the church.  The first Session was constituted 
in 1860.  For many years, only men were Session members, but in 1986 two women, 
Mary Duthie and Donelda MacKinnon were elected to the Session and ordained.

These people have served as elders, with their year of ordination shown.
1860-Hector MacKay, John Matheson, Dugald MacLennan, John McRae, Murdock 

MacDonald, Hugh Cameron and John MacLeod.
1867-Robert Stroner, John Thorrington, John Urquhart and William Wilson.
1871-John Dewar, George McCallum and Robert Cooper.
1884-J.P. McIntyre, Neil Gilchrist, John A. MacKenzie and Murdock MacLeod.
1895-George Ord, Donald Matheson, James Murray Jr. and P.D. Cameron.
1901-James Murray Sr.
1908-Lachlan Bell, Dugald MacKenzie, D.J. McIntyre and A.R. Bell.
1914-D.D. McKay, John Kinmond and P.J. Brown.
1916-Geo. W. MacKay, Robert McIntosh, Wm. Hendry and Jas. W. Farrell.
1926-J.G. Ord, Peter Hutton and Ewart MacKenzie.
1930-Geo. H. MacKay, John Henderson, J.V. Struthers, W.J. Farrell, J.G. Ord, 

Wm. Hendry, Robert McIntosh, Dugald MacKenzie (Clerk), D. J. McIntyre,
Dan Matheson, Ewart MacKenzie and Peter Hutton.

1932-1950 There is no list of elders in the Annual Reports for these years.
1951-Donald Matheson, Alex MacKenzie, John McFadyen, Gordon Avis, 

Alex MacFarlane, A.M. Catto, Gordon Ribey, Dune Cameron, Harold Hendry, 
Ewart MacKenzie (Clerk).

1958-Geo. H. MacKay, Allan Evans, Charles Potter and John H. MacKenzie.
1963-Herman Carefoot and Grant Helm.
1965-Eldon Avery, Jim Inkster and Alex MacFarlane.
1970-Gordon Brown, Alan Dent and Wm. Van Dam Sr.
1977-Neil MacKinnon, George Potter, John L. Smith and Cornelius Zondervan.
1981-Albert Bosch, John Copeland and Ernie Young.
1986-Mary Duthie and Donelda MacKinnon.
1992-Ken Hendry, June MacKenzie, John Ward and Burton Eskrick.
2001-Lillian Leggett, Ian Mitchell, Mynona Paige, Wendy Parry, Tom Scott and 

Ted Stewart.
2005-Mervin Catto, Norman Dobson, Robert Wilson.

Clerks of Session (list may be incomplete)
1909 – D.J. McIntyre 1986 – Alan Dent
1930 – Dugald MacKenzie 1993 – Donelda MacKinnon
1951 – Ewart MacKenzie 2004 – George Potter
1971 – Jim Inkster 2006 – John Copeland
1978 – Wm. Van Dam Sr. 2007 – Mynona Paige
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Kirk Session Photos

Front: Jim Inkster, Ewart MacKenzie, Harold Hendry & Gordon Brown
2nd row: John MacKenzie, Wm. Van Dam Sr., Rev. Black, George Potter & Eldon Avery

Back: Grant Helm, Cornelius Zondervan, John L. Smith & Alan Dent
Side: Neil MacKinnon & Allan Evans

Thought for the Day
Day by Day the Lord pours out his steadfast love upon me,

and through the night I sing His songs.  Psalm 42

First Women Elders May 1986
Donelda MacKinnon and Mary Duthie
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Kirk Session Photos

Front: John L. Smith, John MacKenzie, Neil MacKinnon, Allan Evans, Jim Inkster & Bill Van Dam Sr.
Back: Gordon Brown, Albert Bosch, Rev. Black, Ernie Young, Alan Dent & George Potter.

Front: Ken Hendry, John MacKenzie, Rev. Wendy Lampman & Donelda MacKinnon.
Back: John L. Smith, Ernie Young, John Copeland, June MacKenzie & Alan Dent.

2001
Back: Ernie Young, Ted Stewart, Ian Mitchell 
          & Tom Scott.
3rd: Alan Dent, Mynona Paige, Rev. Wendy Lampman, 
      Burton Eskrick & Wendy Parry.
2nd: Ken Hendry, Donelda MacKinnon, 
       June MacKenzie & John L. Smith.
Front: John MacKenzie, Lillian Leggett, Mary Duthie 
          & John Copeland.
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Session BBQs at Manse

Any alleged Christianity, which fails to express itself in cheerfulness, at some point, is 
clearly spurious. The Christian is cheerful, not because he is blind to injustice and 
suffering, but because he is convinced that these, in the light of the divine sovereignty, 
are never ultimate. Elton Trueblood, The Humour of Christ

Session potluck BBQs 2001 - 2006
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Session BBQs at Manse
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History of Holy Communion at Knox
Communion services are the responsibility of the minister and the Session.  They 

look after supplying the bread and wine (grape juice).  In early times the bread was cut 
off in slices and each member broke off a piece as it was passed along the rows.  For 
many years the centre seats were reserved for communicant members.  Those not 
receiving communion, children and adherents occupied the side rows of seats.  The 
wine goblets or chalices were passed along the rows, each person taking a sip and 
passing it along to the next person.  An elder stood at the end of the pew with the flagon, 
waiting to refill the chalices as they emptied.  Gradual disapproval of the common cup 
became quite a serious and hot topic of discussion.  A vote was taken on July 23, 1914 
to decide the issue, with the result that 55 voted for individual glasses and 11 voted in 
favour of keeping the common chalice.  A new communion service was bought.  At first 2 
pews were kept at the front of the church for those few elderly people who insisted on 
using the common chalice.  On December 30, 1926, the Session recommended that the 
bread be cut into squares.  The first record that we have of a communion service was for 
the whole area on October 3, 1856 with Rev. McNaughton and Rev. Ferguson in 
attendance.  In the very early days of the congregation before the first church was built, 
communion services lasted for several days.  People walked long distances, probably 
not all arriving at the same time.  After the church was erected, English services were 
held in the building and Gaelic services in a nearby bush.  From the Paterson family 
history we read, “Communion services lasted for 5 days and the Paterson home was 
filled with those who came to stay for the services.  The church was too small to hold 
such large gatherings, and the Gaelic services were held in the Paterson barn”.  This 
family has always taken an active part in the life of the Tiverton church, since they 
became charter members on September 27, 1860.  Paterson St. in the village in named 
in their honour.  The first record we have of a communion roll is September 1860 with 64 
charter communicant members.

‘The first communion service in Tiverton took place in July 1861.  Until 1867 only 
one communion service a year was observed.  After 1867 it came to be observed twice 
a year, usually early summer and fall.  It was then known as the long communion when 
five days were set aside for the celebration of the Lord’s Supper.  Thursday was known 
as “Fast Day”, when little or no work was done in the congregation.  Friday was 
“Question Day” when a verse of Scripture was presented for discussion and explanation.  
The elders would express their opinion on the question raised and would try to give 
guidance in the light of their own Christian knowledge and experience.  Saturday was 
“Preparation Day” when tokens were issued to communicant members.  Sometimes 
tokens were refused to members considered by Session to have acted in a manner 
unbecoming a church member.  On Sunday the sacrament was dispensed when 
services were held in both English and Gaelic, and on Monday a service of thanksgiving 
would bring the five day solemn observance to an end.

A few changes have taken place.  In 1896 communion cards replace tokens and 
are delivered by elders.  In the mid 1900’s, a preparatory service was held on Friday 
evening, followed by service on Sunday.  Preparatory services have been discontinued 
and today Holy Communion is regularly dispensed four times yearly.  Now an extra 
Communion service is usually held at Knox on Easter Sunday.  A summer Communion 
was held for a time in the 1990’s for summer visitors, but has been discontinued.  
Communion cards were replaced with Communion Invitations that elders deliver and are 
extended to adherents as well as members.  There are no longer restricted pews as all 
who confess Christ as their Saviour are invited to partake of communion, even children -
with their parent’s consent.
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Holy Communion

Communion tokens

Communion card

Communion Invitations

The Board of Managers
Composition, Function and Responsibilities are:
• “The managers shall be chosen by the congregation at the annual meeting of the 

congregation, or a meeting duly called for the purpose.”
• “One third of the Board shall retire each year by rotation.”
• “Upon the death of a manager, another shall, as soon as convenient, be appointed

in his place.”
• All decisions regarding major capital expenditures by a congregation require a 

two-third majority of those present and voting at congregational meetings.”
• The duties of the Board of Managers have a special regard to the temporal and 

financial affairs of the congregation.  It is their duty to cooperate closely with the 
Session and to disburse all moneys, subject to the approval of the congregation, to 
provide for the payment of the minister’s stipend and other salaries, and generally to 
administer all matters committed to their charge as the congregation may from time 
to time direct.”

• “It is required that all offerings be counted and recorded before being removed from 
the church.”

• It is the duty of the Board of Managers to care for the place of worship and other 
ecclesiastical buildings, and to see that they are kept in good condition and repair.”

•  “It is the duty of the Board of Managers to pay expenses in connection with the 
service of praise as determined by the congregation.”

• “The Board of Managers has no jurisdiction over public worship or any of its parts.”
• “The chairman, secretary and treasurer are appointed by the annual meeting of the 

congregation from among members of the Board.  If this is not done the Board 
appoints them at its first meeting held after the annual meeting.”
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The Board of Managers
• “This does not imply that the administration by the Board of Managers is an 

unspiritual work in contrast to that of the Session, but only that the particular 
responsibilities of the Session and the Board of Mangers relate to two distinct areas 
of responsibility within the whole work of the Church.”

The congregation of Knox Church is grateful to the many men and women 
who have served on the Board of Managers, discharging their duties 
conscientiously and diligently.

Miscellaneous Board Projects

Paving the Parking Lot
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Miscellaneous Board Projects
Left - Shingles in 1985

Right – shingles again in 1995

The Church Basement Project
In 1999, the original wooden floor was found sagging in one corner and inspection 
revealed rotting of the beams and formation of mold under it due to standing water from 
lack of drainage.  In the summer of 2000, the wooden floor and supports were removed, 
a drainage system installed, radiant heating tubes installed and an insulated concrete 
floor was poured.  The Memorial Renovation Fund and the Grant Helm Fund covered 
the total cost that was below the projected estimate of $15,000.  Carpeting was kindly 
donated and installed over this floor in 2001.

Left – old floor ready for disposal
Drainpipe to install

Tubing for in floor heating and insulation 
below concrete pour
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Basement Ceiling Tiles
Although not in the original 5-year Plan, donated ceiling tiles were installed in 

2003.  These tiles are fireproof and more effectively block sound from the Sanctuary.

West Door Replacement
In 2001, the Stewardship 
committee provided money 
from one of their fund 
raising projects to replace 
the old west side wooden 
door with an insulated 
steel door outfitted with 
nine-light clear glass, lock 
and heavy duty closer.  
Tom Scott paints the metal 
decoration above the door.  
A new outside light was 
also installed.

Sprucing up the Sunday School Room
Wendy Parry made new 
curtains to brighten up the 
room.  John Smith installs 
custom made cupboards for 
the Sunday School.
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Geothermal Heating and Cooling System
In 2006, a generous donation was made 

to Knox Church for the purpose of installing a 
geothermal heat pump system.  This system, 
installed by Cook’s Plumbing, provides 
heating as well as cooling and alleviates the 
crippling electrical resistance heating bills.  
The system became operational in June of 
2006.  Thirteen drilled ground holes provide 
access for closed loop circulation of brine to 
recover or dump heat.  Many thanks are due 
for the many volunteer hours for the 
modifications to the church structure, 
electrical hookup and cleanup to minimize the 
cost of this system.

On left, holes are drilled in Manse backyard 
for installation of geothermal plastic pipe 
loops that are filled with brine.

On right, more holes are drilled in yard 
west of the church.

Ducts ready to be installed
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Geothermal Heating and Cooling System
We have a mystery!  When the men 

were removing the partition between the west
entry and the Sunday School room, they found 
a lady’s slip in the wall.  Were they ever 
surprised!!  It was not a raggedy old one, but it 
did need ironing.  Why was it there?  Who put 
it there?  Has it been there since the church 
was built in 1900?  What occurred in the 
gallery that long ago day?  Was it hot?  We’ll 
never know.

Left: Glenn Lampman displays slip found 
when wall was opened up.

Right:
George Potter, 
John Smith,
 Mervin Catto 
& Glenn Lampman.

Left: A cleanup crew of 
one – George Potter
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Music in the Church
For the first few years there was no organ in the church and probably no choir.  

Psalms were sung, with the singing led by a precentor.  He stood in front of the church 
and sounded a note on his little tuning fork.  Each line was presented, and then sung by 
the congregation, one line at a time.  At this time there were no hymnbooks.  Hector 
MacKay, who was the first precentor, was connected with the church from the beginning.  
He was ordained in 1860 and served for 30 years.  He sang in Gaelic.  Other precentors 
were Richard May, James MacKay, George MacArthur and John MacKenzie.  The last 
precentor was Donald E. MacLaurin, who was also choir leader for 26 years.  He was 
also the village blacksmith.  At Inverhuron there was Sabbath School and prayer 
services.  Norman Campbell carried on there as precentor in Gaelic for many years.  
Tiverton Presbyterians were slow to introduce an organ to their service of worship.  Until 
1896, the Session “utterly disapproved of instrumental music in the worship of God.”  In 
1897 they granted permission for an organ to be installed for the use of the Sabbath 
School and Bible Class only.  In 1898 the new Presbyterian Hymnal was introduced in 
the Church service.  That same year the organ was used at the evening service.  
Feelings ran high for and against the use of it.  Some regarded it as an instrument of evil 
and left the church.

The first organist appointed in Knox Church was Miss Lizzie Patterson, (Mrs. Harry 
Hilker), in March 1898, a position she held until 1910.  She was succeeded in turn by 
Misses Helen MacDonald (Mrs. John McClure), Jeanette MacLaurin (Mrs. R.E. 
Carswell), Hazel MacKenzie (Mrs. Wm. Miller), May MacKay, Maisie MacLaren (Mrs. 
Frank Boultbee), Martha Steinhoff (Mrs. James Connell) and Nellie McClure (Mrs. 
Lawrence).  In 1929 Mrs. George E. MacKay became organist, followed by Wm. Van 
Dam Sr., Debbie (Brown) Stanton, David Faulkner and Lynn Broughton.

The first organ was bought in 1897.  It was low, had a yellowish finish and of good 
quality.  The second was a compensating pipe organ bought in 1900, for about 
$1200.00.  It was quite high.  The one had a manual pump operated by young people of 
the congregation.  When hydro was installed in the late 1930’s, the pump was changed
to an electric one.  The fourth organ was bought in 1957.  An organ fund was 
established and soon reached its target.  This was a Baldwin electric organ, small and 
compact with a walnut finish and a lovely tone.  Total price was $1595.00.  Contributions 
for the organ continued and this extra money was used to buy new choir gowns, hats 
and hymnbooks.  On Sunday, April 27 1958 a special dedication service was held, 
dedicated “in memory of the men & women of the Armed Forces and members and 
adherents of Knox Church.”  Two daughters of the Rev. Angus McIvor, a former minister 
attended, Sheila Scott as organist and Catherine McIvor as soloist.  The present 
Electrohome organ with bench was purchased in 1972.  The fund raising for this organ 
was so successful, that there was enough extra money to purchase a Haines piano and 
bench for the Sunday School room, as well as 125 stacking chairs.  In April 1972, the 
C.G.I.T. and Intermediate Choir sponsored an Organ recital, with Wm. Van Dam Sr., 
organist and Mrs. Arno Kelly of Kincardine as guest soloist.  In 1992, Donald J. 
McDonald donated a piano for the Sanctuary in memory of his wife Gerry.  In August a 
dedication service was conducted by Rev. Donald Sinclair, a son of a former minister of 
Knox, with Frank Bean of Brampton as guest pianist.

Customs pertaining to music in the church have changed over the years.  Initially, 
in worship, the congregation sat during the singing of hymns and stood during prayers.  
During Rev. Steven’s ministry this changed – the congregation now stands to sing and 
sits to pray.


